
COMMUNITIES AND PLACE OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE AGENDA

Monday, 28 January 2019 at 1.30 pm in the Bridges Room - Civic Centre

From the Chief Executive, Sheena Ramsey
Item Business

1  Apologies for Absence 

2  Minutes of the last meeting (Pages 3 - 12)

The Committee is asked to approve the minutes of the last meeting held on 17 
September 2018.

3  Go Gateshead Health Equality Audit (Pages 13 - 24)

Report of the Strategic Director, Corporate Resources

4  OSC Review - Work to Address Skill Shortages and Increase Employment 
Opportunities - Evidence Gathering (Pages 25 - 28)

Report of the Strategic Director, Communities and Environment

5  Managing the Environment - Progress Update (Pages 29 - 32)

Report of the Service Director, Development, Transport and Public Protection.

6  Annual Work Programme (Pages 33 - 36)

Report of the Chief Executive and the Strategic Director, Corporate Services and 
Governance

Contact: Sonia Stewart - Tel: 0191 433 3045 - Email: SoniaStewart@Gateshead.Gov.Uk, 
Date: Friday, 18 January 2019

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



GATESHEAD METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL

COMMUNITIES AND PLACE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
MEETING

Monday, 10 December 2018

PRESENT: Councillor N Weatherley (Chair)

Councillor(s): T Graham, D Burnett, B Clelland, S Dickie, 
A Geddes, F Geddes, S Hawkins, M Hood, H Kelly, 
J McClurey, J Turnbull and A Wheeler

IN ATTENDANCE: Councillor(s): 

APOLOGIES: Councillor(s): K Dodds, H Haran, P Maughan and J Simpson

CPL17 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING 

RESOLVED -  That the minutes of the meeting held on 29 October 2018 be 
approved as a correct record.

 
Matters Arising
 
It was noted that with regards to the Speed Awareness issue which has been raised 
following the OSC review.  The Committee were advised that a list of sites of 
concern had been collated and passed to the police.  If any new sites are identified 
there is now a mechanism in place which will allow officers to report them to the 
police team.  There is a specific criteria in terms of the locations of cameras.  Police 
have been having police cars at certain hotspots and have had the mobile speed 
gun out.  Councillors are asked to contact a member of the team in Highways if they 
have any issues to report and they will be fed through to the Police.
 
 
 

CPL18 REVIEW FO ADDRESS SKILLS SHORTAGES & INCREASE EMPLOYMENT 
OPPORTUNITIES - THIRD EVIDENCE GATHERING SESSION 

The Committee held its third evidence gathering session as part of its Review to 
Address Skills Shortages and Increase Employment Opportunities.  The first two 
sessions have looked at early years and preparedness for school, careers and work 
inspiration, extra-curricular activity at school and post-16 learning.
 
This session was for two presentations, the first from Dr Emma Barron, Business 
Development Manager, Northumbria University and Catherine Manley, Access, 
Success and Progression Manager, Northumbria University.  The second 
presentation will be from Peter Northrop, Locality Manager NE, Skills for Care.
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



The presentation from Northumbria University would cover, current levels of access 
from under-represented groups, outreach activities, developing employability skills, 
alternative routes into higher education – foundation years and degree 
apprenticeships, employer engagement, employment and student enterprise.
 
The University advised the Committee that the Office for Fair Access have insisted 
that all universities must put in place an access and participation plan.  Office for 
Fair Access have highlighted who universities need to look at as target groups, 
including students from local HE Participation areas, those estranged from their 
families, carers and military families.
 
Currently the percentage of students at Northumbria from low participation 
neighbourhoods is at 19% against a target of 21%.  Nearly 20% of undergraduates 
are mature students.
 
The university run various outreach programmes, pre-16 programmes (Junior 
Evolve) (usually age 10 onwards) and post-16 programmes (Evolve).  The 
programme includes working with schools and creating sustained engagement with 
the University to develop confidence in applying to University and raising 
aspirations.  There have been 10,256 beneficiaries in the pre-16 programme.  The 
University have a Supported Entry Scheme, 103 schools are engaged in this with 
1060 applications received.  Successful students earn NU entry points through 
participation in outreach activity and NU accepts these equivalent to UCAS tariff 
point.  Northumbria University have retention rates above 90% above all categories, 
with award winning Student Support and Wellbeing service.
 
Some of the outreach activities the University undertakes include
 

         Evolve – a programme of workshops for Year 12-13, delivered in schools or 
on campus.  These include sessions on surviving sixth form, and the 
application process to high education, making the most out of university and 
‘choose Northumbria’.

         Junior Evolve – Years 5 – 11, these sessions cover awareness raising, 
understanding the breadth of subjects offered, study skills, meeting current 
students and some subject specific workshops in maths, science and English.

         NU Entry – Year 12, participants gain up to 15 entry points through skills 
development such as communication, personal enterprise, teamwork, 
research and analysis.

 
The university also have an aim to focus on employability skills – 
 

         Careers employability award – an online tool for all students with seven 
programmes focusing on a range of attributes, skills, strengths and 
achievements to transform levels of employability

o   Self-awareness, workplace skills, career possibilities, job hunting, CVs 
and applications, Interview and offers and preparing for work.

o   Accompanying resources students can access employer advice, 
podcasts, placement opportunities and volunteering.

         Degree content- informed by employers and accrediting bodies
         Northumbria Employability Framework – programmes have to reflect the 

Page 4



development of:
o   Personal and professional skills
o   Career development learning opportunities
o   Employer engagement – work placements, internships, live employer 

briefs/projects, simulations, volunteering.
 
The University offer Degree apprenticeships, where the learner is employed full time 
in a company and spend one day per week at the University.  The University also 
offer foundation years, which is a year of study at the start of a university course, this 
prepares the student for a degree programme, it is an alternative entry route which 
needs lower UCAS tariff points), for example 80 UCAS for science, regular entry is 
120-10 UCAS points.  This provides students with the chance to experience 
university-style teaching and gain study skills to make undergraduate study easier.
 
The university works hard with employers to help with skills development, lots of 
companies don’t have in-house research and if they are working with Universities 
they can tap into the funding stream.
 
The University have been operating a Student and Graduate Enterprise Scheme 
since 2004, this service supports all current and recent graduates who wish to 
launch an enterprise.  Northumbria University are the 1st in the UK and has been for 
4 out of the last 5 years.  Currently active businesses are generating £83m turnover 
per annum, with the creation of 1100 jobs.  Annually there are typically 30 start ups 
per year.  The areas of support offered by the University include:
 

         Hatchery – accommodation offered rent free for up to 12 months, including 
basic IT, telephone, Pre-start and early trading businesses.

         Mentoring – specialised areas such as sales, marketing, PR, finance, UX & 
Service Design, Business Growth &IP/legal issues.

 
Graduates into Gateshead which is incubation space offered to graduates in Council 
business centres.  The deal offered is dependent on stage of business, length of 
trading etc, 29 businesses have been placed in total 5 have stayed with Gateshead 
for a longer period.
 
The Committee also heard from Peter Northrop, Locality Manager, Skills for Care.
 
The Committee were advised that in Gateshead there are currently 6100 jobs in 
adult social care split between local authorities (13%), independent sector providers 
(79%) and jobs for direct payment recipients (9%).  The adult social care workforce 
in the North East has grown by 9% since 2012.  If it is to meet predicted demand it 
needs to increase by another 33% by 2035.  For Gateshead that equates to anther 
2013 jobs. 
 
In Gateshead 7.3% of roles in adult social care were vacant, this equates to around 
400 vacancies at any one time.  26% (1600 people) of the workforce are 55 years of 
age or over and may retire in the next 10 years.  Whilst only 10% (610) are under 24 
years of age.  Without those 2413 jobs being filled will family, friends receive the 
care they need.
Adult social care is for people who are vulnerable or disadvantaged, older people, 

Page 5



physically disabled, have mental health problems, those who have a learning 
disability or have alcohol or drug related problems.  Social care can happen in a 
person’s own home, in a small community setting (extra care housing), at a day 
centre, in a residential home, in a nursing home.
 
Adult social care is a great opportunity for jobs, there are lots of different choices, 
from direct care roles (personal assistant or carer) or roles that support the care 
service (admin, cleaning, catering, activities organiser, estates, nurse, nurse 
associate, social worker, occupational therapist, manager, HR, workforce 
development).  It is also an area of work which is able to accommodate someone 
with no formal qualifications or someone with a masters degree.  It is an area which 
is able to offer training, career development and progression and is flexible in terms 
of part time, full time or shift work.
 
It is a career which offers job satisfaction, good long term employment prospects, 
good training leading to recognised qualifications and career progression it offers the 
chance to make a difference to peoples lives and it is a job where everyday is 
different.
 
The Committee were advised that Adult Social Care staff turnover in Gateshead was 
21.5% in 2017/18, however, 80% of recruits came from within the sector.  The 
Committee were advised that Gateshead has an experienced core of workers with 
an average of 8.9 of years of experience in the sector and 71% have worked in the 
sector for at least three years.  Adult Social Care contributed £1.7 to £2 billion to the 
North East economy in 2017/18, almost of this was in wages.  Over 90% of care 
workers report high levels of job satisfaction.
 
It was noted that the anecdotally members of the Committee were aware that often 
the people who were being looked after received more money in benefits than the 
care worker looking after them received in wages.  It was queried how it would be 
easy to attract people into the sector when the wages were so poor.  It was noted 
that those working in the sector report high levels of satisfaction and stay in the job 
on average 9 years.
 
It was suggested that this is not just an option for people with no qualifications but 
that the area needs to be more attractive to those of a younger age as a career 
choice.
 
It was suggested that presentations should be taken into schools, it was noted that 
there are colleagues from Skills for Care who go into schools.  
 
It was suggested that as a consumer we should start demanding more, for example, 
if someone is paying £800 per week for a care home and there are only 3 staff on a 
night time we should be looking elsewhere.  It was suggested that the Council look 
at travel time being paid when contracts are being commissioned.
 
RESOLVED -  That the information contained within the presentations be noted.
 
 
 

Page 6



CPL19 MAKING GATESHEAD A PLACE WHERE EVERYONE THRIVES - SIX MONTH 
ASSESSMENT OF PERFORMANCE AND DELIVERY 2018/19 

The Committee received a report to provide an update on the six month assessment 
of performance and delivery for the period 1 April 2018 to 30 September 2018.  
 
Performance is measured using trend analysis against the data reported last year 
rather than annual targets.  The report also highlights key actions delivered within 
the last six months against the Council’s Thrive agenda.
 
There are 8 indicators within the Strategic Outcome Indicators which can be 
reported on at the six monthly stage.  4 indicators performance has improved, 3 
indicators, performance has not improved from last year and 1 indicator performance 
has been maintained.
 
The Committee are asked to agree some amendments to the following indicators.
 

         Reported incidents of ASB
o   It is proposed this indicator is amended to incorporate other sources of 

reported anti-social behaviour, as well as police reported incidents, 
data collected would also include anti-social behaviour reported to the 
Private Sector Housing team and The Gateshead Housing Company.

         Referrals to ARCH
o   The ARCH Hate Crime recording system was decommissioned in 

November 2018.  It is proposed that this indicator is changed to reflect 
changes in recording.  Data collected will include reports made via the 
Council’s online reporting system and reports made to the police.

o   2019/20 will be the baseline year for this indicator as this is a different 
way of recording hate incidetns.

         Total recorded crime
o   It is proposed that this indicator is changes to report only on violent and 

serious acquisitive crime
o   Violent and serious acquisitive crime includes all violence against the 

person, robbery, sexual offences, burglary, theft from motor vehicle.
o   In 2017/18 violent crime accounted for 40% of all recorded crime in 

Gateshead.  In reporting on these crime types only, partners will begin 
to understand the effects these crimes have on victims.

o   There will be no target set against this indicator.
         Proportion of people who agree the police and council are dealing with ASB 

and crime issues that matter
o   This indicator has not changed but, rather than having a numerical 

target for this indicator, it would be preferable to set the target as being 
the best performing local authority in the Northumbria Police Force 
area.  The reason for this is that this is more of a challenge for partners 
and the figures reported across Northumbria for this indicator fluctuate.

         Percentage of high risk victims engaged with the Independent Domestic 
Violence (IDVA) Service

o   Currently, this indicator measures the engagement rate of high-risk 
clients.  The newly-established Domestic Abuse service now works 

Page 7



with medium-risk victims as well as high-risk victims, meaning that data 
collected post-October 2018 cannot be compared to previous years’ 
data

o   Due to changes in this service, it was felt that there was a better way of 
capturing the effectiveness of the service and so it is proposed that this 
indicator will now report on the proportion of cases closed where the 
risk level has reduced.

         A new indicator is proposed that would seek to reducing the gap between 
those wards with the highest crime rates and those wards with the lowest 
crime rates.  This would assist in measuring partners’ effectiveness in 
supporting people to thrive.

         It is proposed that one indicator is deleted altogether.  The figures for LW34, 
which measures the proportion of people who feel very or fairly safe in their 
neighbourhood, do not change significantly and have not been below 95% in 
the eight years the Safer Communities Survey has been surveying residents.

 
Some key achievements in terms of the Community Safety Portfolio are as follows:
 

         To help address youth anti-social behaviour in hotspot locations, Operation 
Clasper is in effect across the borough.  The process involves taking the 
details of a child or young person who is believed to be involved in anti-social 
behaviour.  Any young person repeatedly stopped will receive a home visit 
from police and housing officers or, if this fails to address their behaviour, 
more formal action will be considered.

         The use of the tools and powers that form part of the ASB, Crime and 
Policing Act 2014 has increased in the first six months of 2018/19.  Many 
residents may not understand the difference the use of these powers has 
made but, for partners, this increased knowledge has enabled officers to 
address issues and problematic individuals at an early stage, preventing 
escalation and therefore reducing the impact these behaviours have on the 
wider community.

         The first successful injunction for a person under 18 years of age was 
granted earlier this year, with positive requirements attached to the injunction 
to ensure that the young person is encouraged to change their behaviour 
through positive experiences.

 
Some areas of focus for Community Safety over the next six months include:
 

         Engagement and diversion of young people has been identified by partners 
as a gap.  Partners are trying to secure funding to improve services for young 
people in the community.

         A review of all partnership meetings that are held to discuss complex 
individuals is due to take place.  This will streamline the approach partners 
take and reduce duplication for services.

         Undertake a systems-thinking review of how we tackle ASB to ensure we 
have the right approach to supporting victims.

 
Some key achievements and areas for improvements have been identified within the 
Thrive agenda covering the Economy, Environment and Transport, Housing, 

Page 8



Communities and Volunteering and Culture Sport and Leisure Portfolios.
 

         The Heworth maintenance work began late January 018 and was completed 
eight weeks ahead of schedule.

         PROTO:  The emerging technology centre was completed and opened by 
HRH The Duke of Cambridge in September 2018.  There has been strong 
interest from occupiers with 60% of space now occupied, this includes 7 
occupiers relocating from outside of Gateshead.  The Council, working in 
partnership with Invest North East England, has secured Department of 
International Trade’s resources to develop an inward investment proposition 
for the emerging technologies sector on behalf of the region.

         An ERDF application submitted by Gateshead and five other local 
authorities (excluding Durham) in the NECA for a Business Energy Efficiency 
Support Programme was approved.

         Planning approval was granted for new Grade A office accommodation on 
Baltic Business Quarter by the Council.  This was in response to 
development market failure but also demand from potential occupiers for 
space.

         Gateshead has launched an enhanced, ethical recruitment service for 
employers obliged or willing to recruit new job entrants locally.  Working with 
partners the service would support single to large-scale recruitment 
campaigns and would be for both temporary and permanent positions.

         A sector-based work inspiration programme for young people including 
NEETs and Looked After Children will be launched in early 2019.  Working 
with industry, training providers and schools, the programme will deliver 
sector insights and inspiration into future career choices.

         A local Careers Education Information, Advice and Guidance Network for 
Careers Leaders from Gateshead secondary, SEND schools and Gateshead 
College has been established.  The network which will promote sharing best 
practice when linking education with business and developing the Gatsby 
benchmarks.

         The Council successfully delivered the first concert to be held at Gateshead 
International Stadium since 2000, with over 23,000 people attending the 
‘Little Mix’ concert in July.

         The Go Gateshead Sport and Leisure Website (www.gogateshead.com) 
was launched in March 2018 to make it easier for residents to access the 
service.

         Working in partnership, the Council, Keepmoat Homes and the local 
Glenpark Medical Practice secured funding from the NHS for a new medical 
practice on Ravensworth Road.  Construction started in 2018 and will 
complete in December 2018.

 
Some areas for improvement / actions to take forward over the next 6 months have 
been identified as follows:
 

         The Gateshead Regeneration Partnership (GRP) will provide local 
employment and supply chain opportunities for Gateshead businesses.  In 
early 2019 GRP construction begins on three housing sites at Kelvin Grove, 
Rowlands Gill and Whitehills Drive.

Page 9

http://www.gogateshead.com/


         Delivery of new facilities and improved public spaces at Baltic Quarter for 
businesses and visitors will help to create a vibrant business destination and 
facilities will include a new café. 

         The Council will explore opportunities to secure wider social and economic 
benefits for growth in the tech sector including a fairer share and distribution 
of wealth, and greater stability for freelance and contract employees by 
supporting the development of a Tech co-operative.

         An ERDF grant application was made for £8m of funding, to support a £16m 
scheme to deliver sustainable energy and transport improvements to 
Chopwell.

         Civic bus lane enforcement was expected in late 2018 with three cameras at 
Gateshead High Street, the A184 (West Central Route, behind the bus 
station) and the A184 Felling Bypass (westbound).  It is anticipated that lane 
enforcement will lead to a reduction in road traffic and pedestrian accidents.  
The outcome of improved road enforcement will be known at the end of 
2018/19 and continue on into 2019/20.

         Council housing is progressing with work to develop a core and cluster 
scheme of 14 supported living homes in Winlaton.  The development will see 
a mix of bungalows and apartments, supported by an onsite concierge 
providing support for clients with Learning Disabilities.

         The Housing Growth site at Clasper Village has been cleared and is ready 
for development of 191 homes plus a supermarket store to improve access to 
services for local residents.  

         A planning application for the housing growth site at Bleach Green in 
Blaydon will be submitted in January 2019 by Keepmoat Homes, for 183 
homes.  Funding from homes England will help provide 15% affordable 
homes for the area with work starting on site in March 2019 and support local 
first time buyers into home ownership.

         In October 2018 the Council supported a month-long Adult Social Care 
Recruitment Campaign pilot working with the Department of Health and 
Social Care to promote careers in social care.  

 
RESOLVED -      (i)     That the report be referred to Cabinet on 22 January 2019 as 

part of the composite report relating to the Council’s overall 
performance

                            (ii)    That the Committee noted that the delivery of activities 
undertaken are supporting the Thrive agenda.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CPL20 ANNUAL WORK PROGRAMME 

The work programme report was presented to the Committee to note any proposed 
changes / amendments.
 

Page 10



RESOLVED - that the work programme report be noted.
 

Chair……….………………..

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



1

TITLE OF REPORT:   Go Gateshead Sport and Leisure – Health Equity Audit

REPORT OF: Darren Collins, Strategic Director, Corporate 
Resources

Summary 
The purpose of this report is to provide an update regarding the Health Equity 
Audit undertaken within the Go Gateshead Sport and Leisure Service.

Background

1. In December 2017 a Health Equity Audit was undertaken by officers in Public 
Health to further understand the health impact of the Go Gateshead Sport and 
Leisure Service. This report details the findings of this.

Context

2. Health in Gateshead is poorer than average health across England as a 
whole. Gateshead is the 73rd most deprived area out of the 326 local 
authorities in England. Furthermore, life expectancy varies by up to ten years 
among local communities within electoral wards. Not only do local people live 
shorter lives but the average quality of life is poorer when compared to 
England as a whole – a higher proportion of people suffer from limiting long-
term illnesses such as heart disease, cancers or respiratory disease. In order 
to reduce these inequalities, it is important that all people who need safe and 
effective health and health improving services are able to access them and 
have an equal chance of a positive outcome.

3. Health inequality describes differences in health experience between 
population groups caused by differences in factors such as age, gender, 
geographical area of residence, socioeconomic group, ethnic group or 
disability. Health inequity describes differences in the opportunity to access 
services which can improve health.

4. The Health and Lifestyle Survey (2016) showed that perception of fitness 
differs by gender, with 41% of women saying they feel unfit, compared with 
31% of men. Interestingly, there is an indication (though not definitive) that 
men may feel less fit as they grow older, whereas women are the opposite and 
actually feel fitter the older they get. This may reflect that the data indicates 
more women get the recommended level of exercise (150+ minutes per week) 
the older they get, whereas less men do (although again this is indicative 
only).

Physical Activity in Gateshead

Communities & Place
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

28th January 2019

Page 13

Agenda Item 3



2

5. The Active Lives survey carried out by Sport England (2015/16) gives some 
insight into adult activity levels in Gateshead. 501 people responded with the 
following results (self reported).

• 23.2% described themselves as ‘inactive’ compared to 22.3% nationally, 
and 24.6% regionally.
• 61.8% of Gateshead respondents are ‘active’ compared to 64.9% 
nationally, and 62.8% regionally
• 76.5% participated in sport and physical activity (not including gardening) 
at least twice in the previous month. This compares to a national rate of 
77.2% and a regional rate of 74.7%. 

6. There are differences in inactivity levels between socio-economic groups with 
37% of long term unemployed people being inactive compared to 17% of 
those within managerial and professional occupations. Males (63%) are more 
likely to be active than females (59%) Inactivity levels increase with age, those 
aged 16-24 are least likely to be inactive, whilst those aged 75+ are most likely 
to be inactive. 

7. Whilst data on disability is limited, anecdotally it is known that people with 
disabilities are more likely to be both overweight and have lower physical 
activity levels than the general population. Children who have a limiting illness 
are more likely to be obese or overweight, particularly if they also have a 
learning disability. Both underweight and obesity are an issue for people with 
learning disabilities. This relationship varies according to age and gender. 
Disabled people are half as likely as non-disabled people to be active, and 
inactivity is shown to increase as the number of impairments an individual has 
increases. 

8. National evidence shows that leisure facilities have enormous potential as 
facilities to meet the diverse needs of local communities. Nationally we know 
that a number of disadvantaged communities, who are not meeting 
recommended physical activity levels, don’t access leisure centre provision or 
other types of physical activity services, for a range of reasons and 
circumstances. The evidence base suggests this includes three main groups: 
older people, people with a disability and people from lower socio-economic 
groups.

Issues for consideration 

Methodology

9. The Health equity audit is a tool which can be used to identify groups within a 
population that experience poor access to health or care services in relation to 
their level of ill health, or who experience poorer outcomes as a result of using 
services.  

10.The focus of the report is on the proportion of people who hold a leisure card 
who access leisure facilities, as an indicator of service usage. The report 
provides a profile of service users split by age, gender and deprivation.

11.The aims of the HEA are to;
Page 14



3

a) To help identify communities (profile of service users) in need of 
services, who are not getting access in proportion to their level of need. 

b) To suggest groups where more detailed work is needed to identify 
barriers to accessing services.

c) To produce a set of recommendations to be taken forward to redress an 
inequity in service access.

12.Appendix 1 provides a description of the variant membership card types (Go 
Gateshead Card, Go Gateshead Access Card, GO Member, LAC/LPDC 
Card).

Limitations

13.A major limitation of the HEA, is that the leisure card data represents 
customers that have a card (provided personal details) but for the purpose of 
the report we are unable to analyse how ‘active’ the various card holders are in 
terms of frequency of visiting facilities and type of activity chosen.

14.Data was captured at a single point in time in December 2017, however It is 
acknowledged, that there are significant limitations in the data, which result in 
the need to make some assumptions which are highlighted throughout the 
report. The caveat with the leisure card data is that the data represents 
customers that have a card (provided personal details) but for the purpose of 
the report we are unable to analyse data regarding usage of the facilities by 
individuals.

15.Data is not held on the current system for non-card paying customers in 
relation to determining customer demographics, or the reason for use of the 
facility.

16.Data is also not captured regarding the use of the facilities from events, or 
from informal or formalised groups who play a major part in the utilisation of 
the Go Gateshead Sport & Leisure facilities, i.e. football, swimming clubs, 
schools, etc.

Key findings of the Health Equity Audit

Leisure Card Holders

17.As of December 2017, the service had 29066 Card holders, which provide a 
range of discount on a wide range sport and leisure activities in Gateshead, 
and/or unlimited access to swimming, gym, fitness classes and more, can be 
broken down as follows;

Page 15



4

 Total Gateshead 
Resident

Not in 
Gateshead

No. 17644 13720 3924
GO Gateshead Card Holders

%  78% 22%
No. 651 631 20

GO Gateshead Access Card Holders
%  97% 3%
No. 8247 7216 1031

GO Members
%  87% 13%
No. 419 303 116

LAC Card Holders
%  72% 28%
No. 2105 2066 39

Disabled Children Card Holders
%  98% 2%
No. 29066 23936 5130

Total
%  82% 18%

18.The data captured through the audit (detailed in Appendix 2) confirms that;

d) 82% of customers live in Gateshead

e) 41% of customers live in the top 30% most deprived areas 

f) 48% of all customers are aged under 18.

g) 651 residents are GO Access Card holders. 60% of these customers 
live in the top 30% most deprived wards. These cards are only available 
to Gateshead residents who are in receipt of certain benefits and 
provide discounted prices for leisure provision in Gateshead.

h) There are 8,247 (7,216 Gateshead resident) GO Members – 
membership includes access to 5 gyms, 5 swimming pools, over 200 
fitness classes, sauna and steam rooms and 2 athletics tracks. GO 
membership also includes the same rate of discount on other activities 
provided through the GO Gateshead Card scheme.

i) There were 419 (303 Gateshead residents) registered as a looked after 
child. As 200 of these are aged under 25, this suggests that around half 
of the total number of looked after children in Gateshead are registered. 
Individuals who receive this card are referred to the service by officers 
within Care Wellbeing and Learning.

j) There were 2,105 leisure passes issued to children with a disability (and 
their family). 2,066 of these individuals are Gateshead residents. This 
allows free and discounted activities with sport and leisure for the whole 
family. Individuals who receive this card are referred to the service by 
officers within Care Wellbeing and Learning.

k) There are customers with Go Card’s from across the whole of 
Gateshead, however, there are only small numbers of clients that live 
around the Town Centre, Quays, and Chopwell. 

Page 16



5

19.There are also fewer clients in Crawcrook, Greenside, Bill Quay, and the 
Bridges ward. This may be due to competing leisure provision in these areas, 
transport/access issues. 

20.Appendix 2 provides a map of the geographical spread of card holders.

Gender 

21.The Gateshead population as a whole is split fairly evenly with 49% male and 
51% female which is reflective of the membership levels within the service. 
(see appendix 3).

22.Within Gateshead, some wards have a less-even gender split.

23.Appendix 2 provides data indicating the gender split percentages per ward.

Age

24.A fifth (20%) of Gateshead’s population are aged under 18. However, under 
18s make up more than two thirds (68%) of GO Gateshead Card holders and 
a third (32%) of GO Access Card holders, likely due to the number of 
children’s swimming lessons, where a Go Gateshead Card enables access to 
swimming classes and other activities at a reduced price.

25.GO Members are more likely to be aged between 25 and 54, with around two 
thirds (64%) in that group. 

26.Whilst 64% of GO Members across Gateshead are aged between 25 and 54, 
some wards are not reaching as many in that age group. For example, 
Whickham South and Sunniside has the lowest proportion at 50%, followed by 
Birtley and Chopwell & Rowlands Gill, both at 54%. This may be due to the 
demographics of the area and again this data shows card ownership rather 
than usage of leisure of facilities.

Deprivation

27.12% of Gateshead’s population live in one of the most 10% deprived areas in 
the country. A quarter (25%) of Gateshead’s population live in one of the 20% 
most deprived areas in the country. 44% live in one of the 30% most deprived 
areas. The proportion of GO Gateshead Card holders in each IMD 2015 
deprivation decile mirrors the profile for Gateshead as a whole.

28.For those living in the 10% most deprived areas the data shows that 10% of 
members have Go Gateshead Cards, this is one of the lowest percentages 
compared to the other IMD deprivation deciles. 

Page 17



6

29.The profile of GO Members is also a close match to the Gateshead profile, 
with a slightly smaller proportion from the most deprived areas, and a slightly 
larger proportion from the least deprived areas.

Recommendations from the Health Equity Audit 

30.There were two main recommendations as a result of the study as follows;

a) Improve data collection and data quality to understand service 
usage.

b) Target work with particular communities (geographical and 
communities of interest) to improve service use.

Future Focus

31.Gateshead’s leisure facilities provide a fantastic range of opportunities that set 
out to increase physical activity levels, and to raise aspirations and support 
health improvements. Further work is needed to focus on the role that sport 
and physical activity can play in tackling inactivity, improve public health, 
reduce health inequalities and manage or prevent long-term health conditions.

32.Gateshead Council’s role will be to create the context that enables leisure 
facilities to impact positively on the lives of the people of Gateshead, targeting 
and enabling those groups most in need of increased physical activity level. 
The Council will have a facilitating and enabling role connecting to broader 
services so that residents can participate in a range of services for their 
wellbeing and leisure.

33.The Council needs to focus on the importance of leisure facilities as relevant 
community spaces, accessible to all and offering opportunities for the delivery 
of a wide range of activities, services, support and entertainment to local 
communities and people. A commitment to work with a wide range of partner 
organisations and individuals as co-creators and co-deliverers of leisure 
facilities so that they best reflect the differing needs of local communities.

34.Specifically, we aim to have:

a) Fit for purpose and relevant leisure facilities that lie at the heart of 
communities. 

b) A better understanding of the needs and aspirations of the people of 
Gateshead in terms of their physical activity needs.

c) Raised physical activity levels amongst all sections of the community 
and improved health and wellbeing of Gateshead residents.

GO Gateshead Sport and Leisure – Next Steps

35.The service is currently devising a refreshed business plan which will be 
modelled upon the recommendations set out within this report. Therefore in 
response to the Health Equity Audit findings the service is currently;

a) Improving data collection regarding;
Page 18



7

i. all protected characteristics, 
ii. non card holders including wider community activity, 
iii. group based users such as schools and clubs.
iv. Exploring options to consider data collection on ‘non GO card 

holders’ of leisure services in Gateshead. This would be useful to 
determine the reason why non Go card holders are using the 
facilities, the frequency they use them and what can be done to 
move these customers to leisure card/annual memberships and 
what the barriers to this may be.

v. Capture more qualitative (case study) information to demonstrate 
the health and wellbeing impact of the service.

b) Developing a community engagement plan to target and include;
i. areas of deprivation
ii. communities of interest such as looked after children and 

children with a disability, as well as geographical areas. 
iii. A review of the criteria linked to the Go Gateshead Access Card 

scheme to encourage greater and wider uptake of the cards by 
at risk groups.

iv. The service is currently launching the ‘Go Easy’ programme 
which is designed to make sport and physical activity more 
accessible and will involve;

1. Education, support and sign posting
2. Provide free/discounted activities
3. Engage communities of interest and target geographical 

areas, through workshops/forums
4. Work closely with GP Practices and community groups

36.The service propose to provide annual updates to OSC regarding the progress 
made. 

Recommendations

37.OSC is asked note the content of the report and provide comment. 

Contact: Chris Strong Ext: 2708

Page 19



8

 

Appendix 1 – Definitions of Leisure Cards

GO Gateshead Card
The Go Gateshead card is a discount card offering a wide range of sport and leisure activities 

within Gateshead that is available to everyone, which is perfect if people work in Gateshead 

but don’t live in Gateshead and still want to take advantage of our fantastic facilities across 

the borough.  You can also register for and book activities online.

GO Gateshead Access Card  
The GO Gateshead Access Card is available to Gateshead residents, and their dependants 

who are in receipt of certain benefits. It gives discounted prices anytime any day, free 

equipment hire, and you can also register for and book activities online.

Leisure Pass for Disabled Children (LPDC)
The LPDC passes are issued to disabled children and their household family members living 

in Gateshead following a referral from the special educational needs team within Care 

Wellbeing and Learning. This pass allows free and discounted activities with sport and leisure 

for the whole family.

Looked After Children Pass (LAC) 
The LAC passes are issued to looked after Children and their foster Carers and household 

family members who are registered with Gateshead Fostering Service. LAC passes are 

issued following a referral from the Gateshead Fostering team. On occasion, fostering 

families live outside of the Gateshead area but may be fostering Gateshead children. The 

LAC card supports Care Leavers up to the age of 25 years of age. This pass allows free and 

discounted activities with sport and leisure for the whole family.

Go Membership
Go Gateshead memberships enable members to access 7 leisure facilities including 

swimming pools, gyms, fitness classes and 2athletics tracks. Memberships are available 

through a yearly contract, including monthly payments across the year. Go Access card 

holders are able to get a Go Gateshead Membership card at a reduced price of £19.00 a 

month, compared to £28.50 as part of a 12 month contract.

 

Page 20



9

Appendix 2 (Data Charts)

Page 21



10
Page 22



11

Geographical spread of leisure clients

P
age 23



12 | P a g e

Male Female
Unknown 

Gender
Under 

18
18-24 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 65-74 75+ 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

No. 17644 13720 3924 8440 9167 37 12025 566 939 1185 943 751 953 282 1423 1709 2408 2095 1029 1215 537 1050 1151 1103

% 78% 22% 48% 52% 0.2% 68% 3% 5% 7% 5% 4% 5% 2% 10% 12% 18% 15% 8% 9% 4% 8% 8% 8%

No. 651 631 20 303 346 2 207 33 95 91 114 89 19 3 115 124 141 99 41 38 10 22 29 12

% 97% 3% 47% 53% 0.3% 32% 5% 15% 14% 18% 14% 3% 0% 18% 20% 22% 16% 6% 6% 2% 3% 5% 2%

No. 8247 7216 1031 4021 4188 38 220 662 1985 1729 1624 1114 762 151 570 886 1259 1123 432 707 297 572 719 651

% 87% 13% 49% 51% 0.5% 3% 8% 24% 21% 20% 14% 9% 2% 8% 12% 17% 16% 6% 10% 4% 8% 10% 9%

No. 419 303 116 185 234 0 251 16 10 33 47 54 7 1 30 42 63 56 18 45 10 13 11 15

% 72% 28% 44% 56% 0.0% 60% 4% 2% 8% 11% 13% 2% 0% 10% 14% 21% 18% 6% 15% 3% 4% 4% 5%

No. 2105 2066 39 1076 1023 6 1161 104 188 392 185 59 15 1 354 316 488 293 131 134 72 100 94 84

% 98% 2% 51% 49% 0.3% 55% 5% 9% 19% 9% 3% 1% 0% 17% 15% 24% 14% 6% 6% 3% 5% 5% 4%

No. 29066 23936 5130 14025 14958 83 13864 1381 3217 3430 2913 2067 1756 438 2492 3077 4359 3666 1651 2139 926 1757 2004 1865

% 82% 18% 48% 51% 0.3% 48% 5% 11% 12% 10% 7% 6% 2% 10% 13% 18% 15% 7% 9% 4% 7% 8% 8%
Total

IMD 2015 Decile

GO Gateshead Card Holders

GO Gateshead Access Card Holders

GO Members

LAC Card Holders

Disabled Children Card Holders

Total
Gateshead 
Resident

Not in 
Gateshead

Gender Age

P
age 24



COMMUNITIES AND PLACE 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

28th January 2019

TITLE OF REPORT: Review to Address Skills Shortages & Increase 
Employment Opportunities – Fourth Evidence 
Gathering Session

REPORT OF: Tony Alder, Acting Strategic Director, Communities &
Environment

Caroline O’Neill, Strategic Director, Care, Wellbeing &  
Learning

  _________________________________________________________________
SUMMARY 

This report gives detail of the fourth evidence gathering session that will take place 
on the 28th January 2019. The views of the Committee are being sought on the 
evidence presented. 
___________________________________________________________________

Background

1. Communities and Place Overview and Scrutiny Committee agreed that the focus 
of its review in 2018/19 will be working to address skills shortages and increase 
employment opportunities. 

2. The review will help the Committee to have a truly holistic view of the current 
skills and employment position and the challenges we face both now and in the 
future, as well as looking at best practice in other areas which could be developed 
in Gateshead. 

3. The Committee will also consider how we or our partners currently work; highlight 
gaps in provision and identify more effective partnership working opportunities for 
the benefit of our residents and their ability to access employment opportunities, 
with a view to agreeing a set of recommendations.  

Purpose of this session

4. The scoping report, agreed by OSC on the 18th June 2018, laid out the position in 
Gateshead in terms of skills and employment. Broadly, these are:

 Whilst skills levels are improving, Gateshead continues to have a higher 
than average number of residents with no/low-level skills and a lower than 
average number with high-level skills.

 Levels of benefit dependency and health-related issues remain significantly 
higher than national comparisons.

  

Page 25

Agenda Item 4



 A mismatch of skills, both nationally and locally exists, with research1 
showing large mismatches between skills young people are developing 
and the jobs available. 

 Challenges exist between learner supply and employer demand when 
trying to address the wider skills needs of the economy. 

 National research shows 1 in 5 workers in elementary type roles are 
classed as underemployed and 13% of part-time workers are people who 
could not find a full-time job. This is particularly concerning given the 
nature of Gateshead’s employment base, with just under 40% of 
employees in entry level jobs2 and just over 25% of the working age 
population working part-time.  

5. This is the fourth in a series of evidence gathering sessions being undertaken for 
this review. The previous three sessions have looked at early years and 
preparedness for school, careers and work inspiration, extra-curricular activity at 
school, post-16 learning, post-18 learning and an illustration of career progression 
challenges in the Social Care sector. 

6. This session will look at the position of retaining and retraining staff, particularly 
for those people at risk of redundancy or falling out of employment, where their 
jobs are becoming more technical or diminishing due to automation and those 
who are no longer able to fulfil their role due to caring, health or age barriers. This 
session will also look at the current position for those who have fell out of work 
and/or are furthest from the labour market and what support is available to them 
to get back into work.  

7. This session will hear two presentations of fifteen minutes from:

 Carly Hinds, Operations Manager, Education Development Trust
 Martin McDonnell, Employment Development Lead and Julie Killick 

Employment Services Team Manager, Economic Development, 
Gateshead Council 

8. The Education Development Trust delivers the National Careers Service contract 
throughout the North East. The National Careers Service provides impartial 
careers advice and guidance helping individuals to progress in work and life. 
Carly is one of the Operations Managers for the Education Development Trust, 
working across multiple contracts, including the Fuller Working Lives project.

9. The Economic Development Service leads strategic efforts to increase 
employability and economic inclusion in the borough and directly delivers a range 
of services to help residents overcome personal barriers to work. The Service 
works with internal and external partners to develop a more integrated offer for 
jobseekers and employers as well as direct delivery of employment support 
services to help unemployed and economically inactive residents move closer to 
and into sustainable employment. The service also develops commercial bid 
strategies and external funding applications to secure resource; and both 
strategic and operational partnership development to promote service integration 
and tackle inequalities. Martin will talk about the current labour market and its 
drivers and Julie will talk about the support and interventions currently delivered 

1 Research by the Centre for Economic and Social Inclusion on the behalf the LGA
2 SOC 2010 Major Group 6-9, Nomis 2018

Page 26



by the Council and other providers to help residents thrive as well as current and 
emerging gaps in support and their implications.

Issues to Consider

10.When considering the evidence outlined above, the Committee may wish to 
consider the following:

 Residents aged 65 and over are projected to increase in Gateshead by 31% 
between 2016 and 2041. 

 The rate of over 50s in Gateshead, who are in work or looking for work, has 
increased from 35% to 41% since 2010. 

 75% of workers over 50 are working in the public sector. 
 Early exit from the labour market is a significant problem – the average age of 

leaving the labour market is lower now than in 1950, not keeping up with life 
expectancy.

 By working longer, individuals are significantly better off and employers value 
the skills of older workers, with many sectors having a significantly ageing 
workforce.  

 The National Careers Service, DWP and NE LEP have worked collectively on 
the Fuller Working Lives project which aims to help employers address 
workforce planning issues, help workless individuals access employment 
opportunities and assist those in employment remain in work through active 
career planning.

 Gateshead (June 2018) has 101,000 economically active residents or 77.8% 
of its population aged 16-64.  Not quite the record figure (103,400 or 79.6% 
July 2015) but still high.

 Claimant Count unemployment of 5,300 or 4.1% (December 2018).  Climbing 
slowly again since all-time low of 3,025 or 2.4% in December 2015 but 
remains comparatively low.

 Economic inactivity rates (long-term sick, looking after family/home, students, 
early retirees etc.) is down to 28,200 or 22.2% (June 2018) of 16-64 
population.  In March 2010 this was as high as 32,900 or 25.6%.

 There is, therefore, a continuing paradox of near record employment figures, 
slowly growing unemployment and decreasing levels of inactivity.

 The question remains, is it the economy which is driving this, the changing 
employment support scenario i.e. Universal Credit or a combination of both?

 If we are to be a borough where everyone thrives, what is required in the 
labour market and employment support?  What interventions to assist this are 
needed, possible and available?

Future evidence gathering sessions

11.As agreed in the scope, future evidence gathering sessions will cover the 
following:

March
 Increasing employment opportunities for local people

Page 27



Recommendation

12. It is recommended that the Committee:

 Gives its views on the evidence presented
 Notes the proposals outlined at point 11 of the report, as the focus for 

future evidence gathering sessions.

Contact: Sarah Douglas Ext:  2030 

Page 28



                   COMMUNITIES AND PLACE
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

                                        28th January 2019

TITLE OF REPORT: Managing the environment – progress update

REPORT OF:           Strategic Director, Communities and Environment
  _________________________________________________________________

SUMMARY 

This report provides an update on progress made with environmental enforcement 
across the borough.

___________________________________________________________________

Background

1. The Council has been developing its approach to environmental enforcement in 
recent years. This has included the activity of both the established Enforcement 
Team and, more recently, the setting up of a dedicated environmental 
enforcement function within the Parking Services Team. Both teams operate within 
the Development, Transport and Public Protection Service within Communities 
and Environment. 

2.This report provides an update on recent activity relating to the above.

New Environmental Enforcement Team 

3. Following agreement at Cabinet in December 2017 a small team of dedicated 
environmental enforcement officers (EEOs) has been recruited. They are located 
within the Parking Services team within Communities & Environment in order to take 
advantage of similarities in process and technology with the parking enforcement 
function. This service went live from 8th January 2019. 

4. EEOs have the power to issue Fixed Penalty Notices (FPNs) for the following 
offences:

 Dog Fouling
 Littering
 Littering form vehicles
 Fly posting
 Graffiti

5. Unlike parking contraventions, environmental offences are criminal offences.  As a 
result any alleged offender may, instead of paying an FPN, elect to have the matter 
heard in the Magistrates Court. However the maximum fine upon conviction at Court 
is significantly higher than the amount of the fixed penalty, which in all of the above 
cases is £75.00.

Page 29

Agenda Item 5



6. Operation are intelligence led and members of the new team have been in contact 
with ward councillors in order to build a clear picture of where the hotspots across the 
Borough are for the type of offences they will be dealing with.  

7. Councillors are encouraged to email the CE Environmental Enforcement mailbox 
with requests for service.  Priorities will then be set based on the nature of the issue 
and availability of resources.  It is important to note that environmental offences are 
dealt with under criminal law.  The standard of evidence required for prosecution is 
therefore quite high and there are processes to follow which cannot be varied at a 
local level. 

8. Whilst the primary duty of officers is to issue and deal with offences by the issue 
and enforcement of an FPN, the team are mindful of the Council’s desire to seek 
behaviour change.   A team of three Environmental Enforcement Assistants (EEAs) 
is working alongside the EEOs to help achieve this by means of complementary 
guidance and education.

Flytipping and Waste 

9. The Enforcement Team in Development, Transport and Public Protection carries 
out a wide range of functions including Planning and Highways Enforcement and 
more recently since 2016, Environmental Enforcement. 

10. As last reported in April 2018 the approach taken by the Enforcement team in 
Development Transport and Public Protection to tackle environmental issues has 
four streams:

 Reactive work dealing with antisocial issues
 Proactive work dealing with antisocial issues
 Reactive work dealing with criminal issues 
 Proactive work dealing with criminal issues

The volume of work dealt with by the team is extremely high with over 6000 
complaints about waste related issues being received since April 2018. 

Reactive work dealing with antisocial issues

11. The bulk of the work carried out in this area involves issuing Fixed Penalty 
Notices (FPNS) to the perpetrators of small scale flytipping. Adopting this approach 
has proved to be extremely effective, offering a low cost and proportionate response 
carrying a deterrent effect and to date there continues to be no repeat offenders.  

12. Since April 2018 60 further FPNs have been issues bringing the total to 174 since 
the team started issuing FPNs at the end of 2016.  In the vast majority of cases FPNs 
are paid however if they are not the perpetrator is prosecuted. 

13. The team are continuing to trial the use of other powers such as the prevention of 
Damage by Pests Notices and Community Protection Notices which are proving to 
be effective. 

Page 30



Proactive work dealing with antisocial issues 

14. Proactive approaches to dealing with antisocial behaviour now have an 
established place in the team. The Lobley Hill & Bensham/Saltwell Waste Pilot, 
focussing on 320 houses in the two wards has now been completed and an 
evaluation is being prepared. This work involved teams of officers from the 
Enforcement Team and Private Sector Housing Team visiting every house and 
identifying issues such as accumulations of waste in yards and back lanes, missing 
bins and contaminated bins. The approach taken was to engage face to face with 
landlords, tenants and owner occupiers and ensure that immediate action was taken. 

15. Landlord Licensing Scheme start up meetings have now commenced with a 
scheme extending across a further 1300 properties in the Saltwell ward. 

Reactive work dealing with criminal issues

16. The Enforcement Team regularly come across serious criminal activity and since 
April 2018 a further 24 individuals and business have been prosecuted for waste 
offences. Penalties include fines totalling £13,237, costs totalling £5,609, 2 
community orders and vehicles used to commit offences have been seized   
Warrants have been issued for more than 10 persons who have failed to attend court 
when summonsed. 

Some examples include:

 William Cottingham of Falsgrave Place, Whickham, the director of J & B 
Properties Management Ltd was fined £800 for being involved in fly-tipping a 
broken fridge in Coatsworth Court in Bensham

 Christopher Hall of Hadrian Drive, Stella was convicted of failing to ensure that 
waste from his home was disposed of by an authorised person after it was 
flytipped in Gateshead. He was fined more than £600.  

 Glenn White of Shelley Avenue, Easington Lane had his vehicle seized by 
enforcement officers and was subsequently prosecuted for not having a waste 
carrier licence or a scrap metal licence. He was fined £1,000 and ordered to 
pay £200 costs.

 Andrew Harrison of Dennison Crescent, Birtley who operated as Harrison 
House Clearances and who was paid by customers to dispose of their waste 
but then simply flytipped it in Birtley was convicted of flytipping and operating 
a waste business without a waste carrier licence. He was sentenced to 160 
hours of unpaid work, a 12 month community order and costs of £150

 Dennis Bryan of Henley Avenue, Pelton Fell was paid by customers to remove 
waste and flytipped it in a garage block in Longhirst, Gateshead. He was fined 
£760, ordered to pay £150 to have the waste cleared and ordered to pay 
costs of £100. 

 Emma Bell of Dryden Road Gateshead cleared her garage of rubbish and left 
it in the rear lane. She was fined £300 and ordered to pay £250 costs. 

Page 31



 John Watson of Front Street, Swalwell was paid to collect waste from a 
property in Swalwell and subsequently fly-tipped it in Wardley Lane, 
Gateshead. He was convicted and given a 24 month Community Order, with 
15 hours rehabilitation activity requirement and 200 hours unpaid work.

Proactive work dealing with criminal issues 

17. The Enforcement Team carried out regular enforcement exercises targeting 
waste crime in partnership with other enforcement agencies including Northumbria 
Police, HM Revenue and Customs, the Driver and Vehicle Standards Agency and the 
Environment Agency. Some recent examples include: 

 Operation Car Wash a joint exercise with Northumbria Police, UK Border 
Agency, the Health and Safety Executive targeting a number of issues 
including employing illegal immigrants, human trafficking, health and safety 
the disposal of waste from car wash premises 

 Operation Itinerant a joint operation with Northumbria Police and the 
Enforcement Team targeting illegal scrap collectors operating in Gateshead 

 Home Office Scrap Metal Week of Action another multiagency exercise 
targeting waste carriers 

Technology 

18. The online reporting platform developed with the Digital Team in the Office of the 
Chief Executive is proving to be an efficient and effective process for the public, 
Members and Officers to report flytipping with increased accuracy, including 
uploading photos and pin pointing locations. 

Recommendations
 
That the progress with Environmental Enforcement as set out above is noted, and 

that further progress reports are provided in due course. 

Contact: Anneliese Hutchinson Ext: 3881

Page 32



     

TITLE OF REPORT: Work Programme 2018-19 and Development of Work 
Programme for 2019 - 20

 
REPORT OF:           Sheena Ramsey, Chief Executive

Mike Barker, Strategic Director, Corporate Services 
& Governance

______________________________________________________________________
Summary

This report is set out in two parts. The first part sets out the provisional work programme 
for Communities and Place Overview and Scrutiny Committee for the municipal year 2018-
19 and the second part details the current position / next steps in the development of the 
work programme for this OSC for the municipal year 2019-20.
________________________________________________________________________

2018-19 Work Programme 

1. The Committee’s provisional work programme was endorsed at the meeting held on 
23 April 2018 and Councillors have agreed that further reports will be brought to 
future meetings to highlight current issues / identify any changes / additions to this 
programme.

2. Appendix 1 sets out the work programme as it currently stands and highlights 
proposed changes to the programme in bold and italics for ease of identification.

Development of 2019-20 OSC Work Programmes

Background

3. Every year each Overview and Scrutiny Committee draws up a work programme 
based on the Council’s policy framework which is then agreed by the Council as 
part of the policy planning process.

4. The Committee’s work programme is a rolling programme which sets the agenda 
for its six weekly meetings. It is the means by which it can address the interests of 
the local community, focus on improving services and seek to reduce inequalities in 
service provision and access to services.

5. Under the Council’s constitution the issues which will be considered by the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committees come from a number of sources:

 During the year the Committee may choose to scrutinise decisions made by the 
Cabinet to ensure decisions are taken properly;

 The Committee may be requested by the Cabinet to carry out reviews of 
particular issues in accordance with the Council’s policy priorities;

COMMUNITIES AND PLACE 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE
28 January 2019

Page 33

Agenda Item 6



 The Committee will receive six-monthly reports on performance for comment to 
Cabinet;

 The Committee will receive reports on relevant service improvement reviews at 
key stages of development to confirm to Cabinet that reviews are progressing 
appropriately;

 Section 119 of the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 
and Section 126 of the Police and Criminal Justice Act 2006 enable any member 
of the Council to refer to a relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee any local 
government matter and any crime and disorder matter which affects their ward 
or constituents (Councillor Call for Action - CCfA). 

 Members of the Committee may identify particular issues for consideration;
 Members may also examine issues in the Council’s Forward Plan; and
 In addition, where the Committee has reasonable concerns about a particular 

executive decision the call-in mechanism is available.

Current Position 
 

6. The process for developing all the OSC work programmes for 2019-20 is now 
underway and views are currently being sought from councillors’ on potential priority 
issues for inclusion which fall within the remits of the relevant OSCs and support the 
5 pledges under the Thrive agenda:-
 Put people and families at the heart of everything that we do
 Tackle inequality so people have a fair chance
 Support our communities to support themselves and each other
 Invest in our economy to provide sustainable opportunities for employment, 

innovation and growth across the borough.
 Work together and fight for a better future for Gateshead

7. At this OSC meeting on 28 January 2019 there will be an opportunity for the OSC to 
comment on / discuss emerging issues for this OSC / put forward additional issues 
for consideration. 

Next Steps

8. Subsequently, in line with usual practice, partner organisations will be consulted on 
the emerging themes for each OSC for 2019 – 20 with a view to OSCs considering 
any feedback/ additional suggestions / endorsing their respective work programmes 
at their March / April 2019 OSC meetings and referring them to Council for 
agreement.

Recommendations

9. The Committee is asked to:-
a) Note the provisional work programme for 2018-19;
b) Note that further reports on the 2018-19 work programme will be brought to the 

Committee to identify and additional policy issues which the Committee may be 
asked to consider.

c) Comment on the emerging issues for this OSC’s 2019-20 work programme / 
highlight any additional issues for consideration.

Contact:     Angela Frisby                            Ext:     2138

Page 34



Appendix 1
Communities & Place OSC 2018/19 Work Programme
18 June 2018  Constitution / role and remit

 The Council Plan – Year End Assessment 
and Performance Delivery 2017-18

 OSC Review of the Council and Partner’s 
Approach to Roads and Highways – Final 
Report 

 OSC Review - Work to address skill 
shortages and increase employment 
opportunities - Scoping Report and Evidence 
Gathering 

 Verbal Update - TWAM/Beamish 
 Work Programme 

17 Sept 2018  OSC Review – Work to address skill 
shortages and increase employment 
opportunities - Evidence Gathering

 OSC Review of the Council’s and Partner’s 
Approach to Roads and Highways – 
Monitoring Report 

 Work Programme
29 Oct 2018 Part 1 of Agenda

 Adhoc Policy Issue – Gambling Statement 
of Principles
Part 2 of Agenda

 OSC Review – Work to address skill 
shortages and increase employment 
opportunities - Evidence Gathering

 Work Programme
10 Dec 2018  OSC Review – Work to address skill 

shortages and increase employment 
opportunities -Evidence Gathering -

 The Council Plan – Six Monthly Assessment 
of Performance and Delivery 2018 -19 

 GO Gateshead Sport and Leisure – 
Progress Update – moved from 17 Sept – 
agreed with Chair

 Work Programme
28 Jan 2019  OSC Review –Work to address skill 

shortages and increase employment 
opportunities - Evidence Gathering 

 Managing the Environment – waste/litter/dog 
fouling - Progress Update 

 Work Programme
11 March 2019  OSC Review –Work to address skill 

shortages and increase employment 
opportunities - Evidence Gathering 

 The Flood and Water Management Act   
2010: Annual Progress Report

 Beamish - Annual Update 
 Management of Highways – potholes /traffic 

Page 35



Appendix 1
lights/street lights – Progress Update

 Work Programme 
29 April 2019  OSC Review – Work to address skill 

shortages and increase employment 
opportunities - Final Report

 OSC Review of the Council’s and Partner’s 
Approach to Roads and Highways – 
Monitoring Report

 Annual Report of the Gateshead Housing 
Customer Scrutiny Panel 

 Annual Work Programme Review
Issue to slot in

 Postal Provision
 Air Quality Issues.

Page 36


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the last meeting
	3 Go Gateshead Health Equality Audit
	4 OSC Review - Work to Address Skill Shortages and Increase Employment Opportunities - Evidence Gathering
	5 Managing the Environment - Progress Update
	6 Annual Work Programme
	APPENDIX 1 - Annual Work Programme


